
Please ask for  Julie Britton DDI (01362) 656343
e-mail: julie.britton@breckland.gov.uk

AGENDA
Committee - ATTLEBOROUGH DEVELOPMENT 

PARTNERSHIP
Date & Time - TUESDAY, 5TH SEPTEMBER, 2017 

AT 2.00 PM
Venue - ATTLEBOROUGH TOWN HALL, 

QUEEN'S SQUARE, 
ATTLEBOROUGH NR17 2AF

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 

working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, this 
will be provided, and reported to Committee.

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE 
REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONES

Public Document Pack



Attleborough Development Partnership
Tuesday, 5th September, 2017

Page(s)
herewith

1. AGENDA - 5 SEPTEMBER 2017 3 - 13



ATTLEBOROUGH DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP 

5 September 2017 @ 2.00pm 

Attleborough Town Hall, Queen’s Square, Attleborough 

AGENDA 

Item 
No. 

Subject Lead* Timing 

1 Apologies and Minutes of last meeting CB 2.00 – 2.10 

2 Matters Arising CB 2.10 – 2.15 

3 Planning application progress Ptarmigan 
Rep / PM 

2.15 – 2.25 

4 Update on Growth Fund Proposals RD 2.25 – 2.35 

5 Update on Neighbourhood Plan - Document attached PM 2.35 – 2.45 

6 Project Sub-Group Priorities discussion PM 2.45 – 2.55 

7 Community Sub Group discussion TM 2.55 – 3.15 

8 Any Other Business 3.15 – 3.20 

TM – Tim Mills 
CB – Chris Batten  
PM – Phil Mileham 
JB – Jeremy Burton 
RD – Richard Doleman 

3

Agenda Item 1



 

The Attleborough Development Partnership 
Minutes 

Tuesday 20 June 2017 2.00pm – 4.00pm 
Attleborough Town Hall, Queens Square, Attleborough, Norfolk, NR17 2AF 

Chairman: Chris Batten 
Attendees: 
Board Members  
Richard Doleman (RD)(Norfolk County Council), Tim Mills (TM)(Breckland District 
Council), Tristan Ashby (TA)(Breckland District Council), Gina Lopez (GL) (Attleborough 
Town Council), Joe Hayes (JH)(Ptarmigan Land), Adrian Joel (AJ) (Substitute: Old 
Buckenham Parish Council), Elizabeth Burroughs (EB) (Neighbourhood Plan Rep), 
Jeremy Burton (JB) (Attleborough Town Council); Joseph Hayes (JH) (Substitute: 
Ptarmigan Land); Colin Kilby (Business Representative). 
Minutes: 
Helen McAleer (Breckland District Council) 
Apologies:   
Chris Hey (Norfolk County Council Education), Tony Perkins (TP) (Attleborough Town 
Council), Iain Dunnett (ID)( NALEP), Charles Campion (CC) (Ptarmigan Land); Rona 
Boggia (Old Buckenham Parish Council) 

 

 Item  

1  Welcome 

The Chairman advised that the order of items on the Agenda had 
changed and Item 6 would become Item 4 and Items 4 and 5 would 
become Items 5 and 6. 

 

2 Minutes 
It was noted that Marcia Solloway-Brown had been present and Phil 
Mileham had sent apologies. 
The Minutes were otherwise agreed. 

 

3. Matters Arising 
The Chairman requested that the letter to NCC be circulated. 

 
TM / HM 

4. Project sub-group Priorities discussion 
The framework for the compendium of projects had been tabled at 
the last meeting.  A further push was needed to populate it.  The 
Board and the sub-group had been requested to provide more 
details on the projects already in the framework.   
One example worksheet was tabled.  Each heading/column needed 
to be populated.  The next sub-group meeting would have an in-
depth look at existing projects.  After that the framework would be 
re-circulated. 

 

4



 

JB asked how things could be added to the project list and was 
advised to contact a member of the sub-group to have a project 
added. 
Although the most complete sheet from the compendium had been 
circulated, it still needed further information and a project definition. 
JB had not realised that the Breckland Lodge roundabout was an 
existing project.  TM explained that it had always been part of the 
transport proposals for Attleborough.  All projects already identified 
had been included in the compendium, but not all had funding 
sources.  The Neighbourhood Plan had been used as a source to 
find existing projects. 
AJ asked if the cost of the Link Road project included the cost of 
going over the railway line and PM advised that the build costs were 
included but other costs were not.  JH said they were indicative costs 
which did include the cost of construction of the bridge, but not land 
costs. 
AJ asked when NCC would be considering the project and RD 
explained that the commercial discussions were on-going.  Once the 
Heads of Terms were complete the matter would go back to 
Members.   
RD asked what information people wanted the list to include.  It was 
difficult to condense information about projects and he suggested 
including the contact details of the Project Lead to signpost where 
to get more information.  The first stage had been to get a well-
developed, comprehensive list.  The next stage would be to provide 
that sort of detail. 
EB was pleased to see that the key objectives were the objectives 
of the Neighbourhood Plan.   
The full compendium would not be circulated until more information 
had been added.  

5. Feedback from Ptarmigan / JTP Workshop and Outline 
Planning Application Update 
Joseph Hayes (JH) introduced himself.  He was the co-project 
manager with Craig Nielson.   
A public exhibition had been held on 6 June with around 100 
attendees and 90 written responses.  A lot of queries had been 
answered on the day and he gave examples of some of the 
questions raised.  Generally people were supportive of the scheme 
and impressed with the presentation and proposals.  There had 
been some concerns about 4000 homes but the linear park and the 
green spaces were well liked and would make it an attractive place 
to live in the future.  Concerns had been raised about the town centre 
improvements, congestion, impact of development and urban 
delivery.   
As part of the application process a Statement of Community 
Involvement would be submitted and information would be provided 
on all the public consultation done in the last eight years. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



 

The submission of the planning application was expected mid/late 
July and then Breckland Council would carry out a minimum 21 day 
consultation. 
TA asked if leaflets had been distributed and he was advised that 
4000 fliers had been printed and a company that used a tracking 
system for deliveries, had been employed to distribute them.  
Concerns were raised as no-one knew anyone that had received a 
leaflet.  JH would look into it as they had paid for the printing and 
delivery and believed that the leaflets had been distributed.  He 
would report back to the Chairman with his findings. 
JB asked what stage the application for the loan had reached and 
JH said that the draft Heads of Terms had been sent back in 
February.  They would continue to chase for progress. 
JB suggested the Board should push to keep the Relief Road as a 
priority.   
RD would try to get an update. 

 
 
 
 
 
JH 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RD 

6. Consultation on Growth Fund Proposals 

The consultation with statutory bodies such as BDC, ATC, fire 
service, etc., was about to close.  Once the responses had been fed 
into the design process the public consultation would take place. 
That was expected to commence mid/late July and would give the 
public the chance to have their say.   

Two main areas were the works proposed on Surrogate Street and 
junction works on Church Street/Connaught Road, but there was 
also a list of 33 other proposed town centre projects including things 
such as zebra crossings, improvements to car parks, etc.   

AJ was concerned that problems with traffic queuing at peak times 
on the Buckenham Road to Surrogate Street would not be resolved. 
He asked if vehicles would be able to turn right without causing 
congestion.   

RD would take that point back and make sure that the technical 
details had been considered so that answers were ready for the 
public consultation process. 

The Town Council had already responded to the consultation and 
BDC was awaiting final approval of their response.  The ADP was 
not a statutory body, but could feed into the public phase of the 
consultation.   

BDC’s response was likely to say it welcomed the Surrogate Street 
proposals and recognised that work was needed on the High Street 
and Queen’s Road.  The inclusion of car parking proposals and the 
upgrade to the library car park were welcomed, as were the 
proposals to remove on-street parking.  It would also be supporting 
the Leys Lane pedestrian bridge. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



 

RD asked members if any of the 33 schemes in the list stood out as 
something they would like to look at in the future. 

TA pointed out that the Queens Road traffic lights were not on the 
map and RD explained that they were just a suggestion, not set in 
stone.   

Some of the proposals could be implemented quickly, like the cycle 
route.  Others would need a lot more work.  If proposals were not 
supported they would be removed from list. 

TA said that a quick win would be to put yellow lines on the New 
North Road.  He asked if that could be added to the list.  He also 
said that White House Lane needed extra support and repair work. 

TA did not understand why it was suggested to spend £1.5million on 
the Leys Lane footbridge, when not many people used that route. 

RD explained that it would provide a safer pedestrian crossing of the 
railway line and connectivity between the existing and new 
community.  He urged people to comment on the proposals.  

PM thought there was an opportunity to establish sustainable 
transport routes early on before development started. 

EB was concerned about the proposed shared use of Queens Road 
for cycling and walking as it was a very narrow piece of road used 
by heavy lorries.  However, she thought the concept was excellent. 
 

7. Neighbourhood Plan / Community sub-group Update 
The Plan had recently gone through the pre-submission period.  
Once the independent examiner had been agreed it was expected 
that the Examination would start w/c 10 July. 
JB asked how the Town Council could make an informed choice on 
the Examiner and PM advised them to make sure it was someone 
with a good level of experience of conducting larger Neighbourhood 
Plans. 
TM had received confirmation that the Town Council had agreed 
with having a community sub-group. 
The NP Steering Group would be reformed as a Working Group.  
The Town Clerk was drawing up the Terms of Reference and the 
Town Council was keen to agree membership.  
EB asked if there were other towns with a Development 
Partnerships and a Neighbourhood Plan.  She felt it needed to be 
made clear how it would work. 

 
 

8. Any Other Business 

JB asked for clarification of the ADP membership and which 
organisation each member represented.  He was now the Town 

 
 
 

7



 

Council’s representative and he suggested that Terry Perkins or Tim 
Cobb should be the Business Forum representative. 

TM would clarify that with the Business Forum.  The sub group 
would also need to have a nominated representative.   

The Chairman gave an update on the website.  He had spoken to 
the Council and there was just one hitch left to overcome then the 
site could be populated.  A protocol was being agreed to manage 
the site.  He did not want BDC to edit content from the ADP; it would 
be edited and then sent to BDC to publish.    
 

 
 
 
TM 

11. Date of Next Meeting 
The next scheduled meeting would be held on 5 September 2017.   

 

 

8



Briefing note to Attleborough Development Partnership on Community Sub-Group / Attleborough 
Neighbourhood Plan Policies Working Group 

Introduction 

Previous meetings of the Attleborough Development Partnership (ADP) have discussed the principle 
of utilising the Attleborough Neighbourhood Plan Working Group as the Community Sub-Group of 
the ADP. A terms of reference was developed in consultation with that group and which it was 
understood had been accepted. Subsequently the Town Council has decided to establish a separate 
set of Terms of Reference for a new separate Neighbourhood Plan Policies Working Group.  

While there are significant similarities between the Terms of Reference they also have differences 
such as: 

• A requirement that the Chair be a member of the Town Council in the ANP ToR and for the 
Chair to be elected in the CSG ToR  

• No fixed size in the ANP ToR and a fixed size of 20 in the CSG 
• Sole responsibility to Town Cpouncil in ANP ToR and responsibility to Town Council on 

Neighbourhood Plan matters and to ADP on matters delegated from ADP in the ADP ToRs 

Discussions on the role of the Community Sub-Group/Attleborough Neighbourhood Plan Group have 
been ongoing for over a year. It is therefore important to resolve this matter soon. 

Options 

There are at least 3 options   

1. Have two separate groups with separate terms of reference. This would seem to cause 
duplication as the same people are likely to be involved in both. The representative on the 
ADP would then be the Chair elected by the Community Sub-Group not a member of the 
ANP. 

2. Have one group with an agreed single set of Terms of Reference. This requires agreement of 
the Town Council to the principle of a single group which has previously been reported to 
the ADP but no longer appears to be the case. 

3. The ADP decides not to have a Community Sub Group and consults the Attleborough 
Neighbourhood Plan Group when appropriate. In this case there is no basis for a 
representative of the ANP as a sub group on the ADP. It would be up to the ADP whether it 
wished to include a representative of the ANP on any other basis. 

    

 

9



Neighbourhood Plan Group / Community Sub Group potential Terms of Reference from meeting 
23 March 2017 for discussion with Town Council and ADP 

Aims 

• Assist with delivery of the Neighbourhood Plan and any future developments and reviews 
initiated by the Town Council. 

• Informing and consulting the Community to ensure effective partnership working with 
Attleborough Development Partnership and Town Council. 

• Accountable to people of Attleborough through the Town Council and Development 
Partnership. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

To actively engage organisations, communities and individuals within the Attleborough Development 
Partnership area to ensure access to influence proposals is available to all. 

To advise the Attleborough Development Partnership on effective community consultation and 
engagement relating to Attleborough and surrounding parishes. 

• To support and oversee delivery of the Neighbourhood Plan and undertake any reviews. 
• To highlight proposals or gaps in provision identified by residents and community groups. 
• To work with the Attleborough Development Partnership and Town Council to ensure that 

communication and consultation is accessible to all. 
• To influence the Attleborough Development Partnership and Town Council, acting as a voice 

for the community by making considered recommendations. 
• To undertake requests from the Attleborough Development Partnership and Town Council on 

community related projects and issues. 

Membership – Maximum 20 

Representatives from: 

• Town Council 
• District Council 
• School 
• Business Forum 
• County Council 
• Health 
• Parishes 
• Up to 13 other community representatives 

Sub Group may invite other groups / individuals with suitable knowledge, experience or interest. 

If a community representative resigns then a recruitment process will take place. 

Meetings 

• Meetings will happen at least two monthly but may be more frequent  
• Notes will be taken at each meeting and circulated to the statutory authorities and 

Attleborough Development Partnership. 
• Chair of Atteborough Development Partnership can attend as non-voting member. 
• Meetings are open to the public but the Chair can determine to move in camera. 

10



• Public participation is subject to the decision of the Chair in agreement with the Group. 

Declarations 

• Must declare financial or other non-pecuniary. 
• Financial – cannot participate and must leave the room. 
• Non-pecuniary – can participate and vote. 

Decision Making 

• Does not have delegated powers, therefore all recommendations from the Sub Group will 
require endorsement by the Attleborough Development Partnership Board and/or individual 
authorities that are represented on the Board. 

• Quorum – 7. 

The Community Sub Group 

• Will elect a Chair annually. 
• The Chair or other nominated representative will be a voting member of the Attleborough 

Development Partnership. 
• The Sub Group must ensure there are nominated Substitutes for their representatives. 
• The Community Sub Group will nominate a representative to the Planning and Projects Sub 

Group. 

 

 
 

CC 
DC 

 

Business 
Comm 

Sub-Group 

TC 
 

ADP 

11



TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR ATTLEBOROUGH NEIGHBOURHOOD (PLAN)  (POLICIES) WORKING 
GROUP 
 
PURPOSE 
To assist with the delivery of the Neighbourhood Plan policies and future developments covering the Town 
of Attleborough, in the Breckland district, the “designated neighbourhood area”. 
Inform and consult with the community, the Town Council and the Attleborough Development Partnership 
communicating and working effectively to achieve this aim. 
 
The ANP will define the spatial planning policy priorities identified by the community taking in account all 
representation made during the plan -making process and having regard to all relevant existing plans and 
evidence. The Plan is supported by an audit trail of evidence and an appropriate delivery plan, setting out 
where relevant the means by which these policy priorities may be implemented. 
 
PRINCIPLES 
The Working Group will: 
• undertake the process in a democratic, transparent and fair fashion; 
• give or encourage those who live in Attleborough the opportunity to inform and shape the process; 
• influence the Attleborough Development Partnership, acting as a voice for the community by making 

considered recommendations. 
• make this a positive and constructive process; 
• be accountable to the people of Attleborough through the Town Council; 
• take a holistic approach to improve the quality of life and strengthen the community. 
 
TASKS AND ACTIVITIES 
• Actively engage organisations, communities and individuals within the Attleborough area to ensure 

access is available to all to have influence on proposals.  
• Liaise with residents, partners and stakeholders throughout the developments.  
• Publicise, inform and engage the community in all activities and subsequent progress. 
• Prepare a project plan and timeframe to focus activity and aid planning. 
• Gather and analyse new and available information to maintain and up-date the ANP. 
• Highlight proposals or gaps in provision identified by residents and community groups. 
• Meet regularly to agree actions and discuss issues that arise to ensure the process is dealt with in an 

efficient and timely manner. 
• Decide upon and if required set up sub-groups to assist with specific areas of the ANP policies subject to 

this being agreed and delegated by the (Town Council)  (Full Working Group). 
• Regularly report to the Town Council and ensure they are full informed throughout the process and 

appropriate decisions referred to them when applicable. 
• Key decisions will be mutually agreed by the Working Group and the Town Council. 
• Produce notes/minutes from Working Group meetings and circulate to the Town Council, Working 

Group members and others as agreed to be appropriate, 
• Set-up a mechanism to inform interested residents of progress e.g. monthly updates, emails , websites, 

or physically on Town Notice Boards asking residents to sign-up to these. 
 
REPORTING AND COMMUNICATION 
The working Group does not have delegated powers, therefore all recommendations from the Working 
Group will require endorsement by Attleborough Town Council. 
All publication, consultation and community engagement exercises with be undertaken on behalf of 
Attleborough Town Council with appropriate recognition of the Town Councils position, given in all 
communications associated with the projects 
 

12



MEMBERSHIP AND RESPONSIBLE PERSONS 
• There will be a maximum of **** members of the Working Group to include an elected Chair from the 

Town Council or their nominee. 
• Members must reside in Attleborough. A person living outside the Town but running an established 

local business may be invited providing there is no conflict of interest.  
• The group must consist of representatives from: 

Attleborough Town Council, District Council, Schools, Health, Adjacent parishes, County Council and a 
cross-section of the community. This group may invite other groups/individuals with suitable 
knowledge, experience or interests for specific tasks.  

• People who wish to be involved in the Working Group but do not wish to be members are welcome to 
the meetings. They will effectively form a wider advisory Group, a means of communicating with others, 
but will not have a vote. 

• Any subgroup must have a lead person who is responsible for reporting to the Working group. 
• The Working Group shall be quorate when at least half of the members attend or  a quorum  of 7 

members are present and decisions can be made by simple majority.  
• Interim decisions can be made by members via email copying in the Town Council office and by phone 

reported to the Town Council at the earliest opportunity or subsequent meeting.  
• In conducting their role, the Working Group members must accept the Nolan Principles as 

recommended by the Committee of Standard in Public Life 1995. 
 
ROLES WITHIN THE WORKING GROUP 
• The Working group will elect a Chair at the first meeting and define how secretariat and publicity roles 

will be carried out. The role of the Chair will be to oversee and chair meetings defining agenda and 
ensuring actions are followed up as necessary.  

• The Chair will ensure member’s interests are declared and registered. Any Conflict of Interests 
recognised and measures taken to address them at meetings. If a financial interest is declared, the 
member must not participate and must leave the room, if a non-pecuniary interest; the member can 
participate and vote.  

• The Secretary will take notes/minutes from the meeting, record main decisions and action points and 
make available to the public these and other information as appropriate.  

• Minutes from these meetings shall be forwarded for inclusion in the Full Council Meetings. 
 
WORKING GROUP MEETING ARRANGEMENTS 
The Working Group will meet regularly two monthly or when necessary additional meetings may be 
organised. The public are welcome to attend the Working Group meetings and speak at the Chair’s 
discretion. 
A list of working group members and contact details shall be maintained. Any changes to the membership 
will need to be notified and agreed by the Town Council.  
 
CHANGES TO THE TERMS OF REFERENCE 
Any amendments to the terms of reference must be approved by Attleborough Town Council for approval.  
 
These Terms of Reference were agreed on 
 
Date………………………………………………………………………………………………..….. 
Attleborough Town Council. 
 

13


	Agenda
	1 Agenda - 5 September 2017
	170905 ADP Agenda
	20170620 ADP Draft Minutes_final
	Briefing note on ANP and CSG
	Draft T of R for Community sub group 23 March 2017
	TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR ATTLEBOROUGH NEIGHBOURHOOD WORKING GROUP (2)


